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To all past pupils of the school 



THE CONSTRUCTION 
The first attempt to have a national school built was made in December 

1901 when a grant was applied for but it was not successful. It was tried again in 
1907. An Inspector's report on the educational needs of the area led to a grant 
being made on 2 November 1909. The original grant was for a school of 110 
pupils but the Parish Priest at the time, Canon Casey, argued for a school of 150 
pupils, or rather two schools, for boys and girls. This was agreed and an extra 
grant awarded on 6 September 1910 on condition that the numbers would justify 
it. The condition being that at least 50 children would attend each school within 
the first two years. However, this did not happen. 

It cost an estimated £1239.15s.0p. to build, equip and enclose. The Parish 
contributed £127. In accordance with the custom of the time the Management 
was vested by a lease, a Vesting Lease, with the Diocese of Kerry to oversee the 
provision of primary education. The lease was for 900 years from 13 February 
1911. The construction was completed in 1912 by the Board of Works with a lot 
of local help and on a piece of land provided free by Humphrey O'Donoughue. 
Coffey was the contractor and a Flynn from Waterford was the foreman of the 
building work. The builders lodged at Lane's cottage. It was opened on 12 
August 1913. 

It was reported on 25 October 1913 that none of the children knew any 
Irish and English was the home language of all pupils. It was also reported that 
the teachers were not yet competent to teach a full course of Irish. They were 
attending classes to obtain the necessary qualifications. 

The first Principal of the Girls' school was Miss Bridget O'Shea and the 
Junior Assistant Mistress (JAM) was Miss Mary Ellen Corcoran from Minor 
Row. The Principal of the boys' school was Timothy Corcoran from Pound Hill 
who operated on the basis of frightening the life out of pupils. They took up 
their appointments on 12 August 1913. 

With the change of state the Free State, the Irish taxpayer, took over all 
the cost of teaching, upkeep and inspection and the new Government acquired 
the rights and responsibilities that the Commissioners of Education had. 

The attendance on 30 September 1913 was 29 boys and 35 girls. It varied 
very little in the early years and on 30 June 1916 it had 28 boys and 37 girls. 
This meant that the original justification for the two schools was not met and the 
authorities exercised their rights to have them amalgamated into one. The 
Commissioners of National Education made plans to carry out the amalgamation 
and the Parish Priest, Fr. Casey, was furious at the proposal and wrote to the 
Commissioners on 1 October 1916 to object as follows: 
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Canon Casey was not successful. The facts and figures were against him. 
Neither school had reached even 40 pupils in each. It now seems extraordinary 
that he could contemplate the closing of the school rather than have children of 
both sexes educated together. The schools were amalgamated on 1 Jan 1917 with 
Tim Corcoran as Principal, Bridget O'Shea as Privileged Assistant and Mary 
Ellen Corcoran as Junior Assistant Mistress. Miss Corcoran left on being called 
to training in 1919. Miss O'Shea became Mrs Riordan in 1923, marrying "Peter 
the Peeler". They lived at what was later Timmy 'Robert' Sullivan's house. 
When confirmed at 12 most children left. It was extensively refurbished by the 
Department in 1961 at a cost of £5,000. 

The other teachers were Jimmy Kelleher from Kilnamartra and Lyre, 
(part time), Din Joe Murphy from Boherbue, John Kinneally from Millstreet, 
John Weir from Ballylongford and Ballyvourney, Noreen Doherty (later Scully). 
Pat Holly was Principal from 1 October 1948 - 3 September 1967), Peggy Connell 
(later Kelleher) from 3 September 1956 - 1 September 1974, and John Tynan was 
the last Principal from 27 November 1967 - 1 September 1974. It amalgamated 
with Millstreet Boys' sfchool on 2 September 1974. 

The Register, usually referred to as the Roll Books, are available thanks to 
John Tynan who had the foresight to take care of them and make them available. 
We all owe him a debt of thanks. At the time of writing I believe there are three 
still alive from the very first day's intake - Cors. C. Kelleher, better known as 
Con Conny Conor or Con Concubhair, his brother Jack and Julia Kelleher -
now Mrs Murray who lives near Carrigimna. A total of over 600 pupils went 
through the school during its life. 

AUBANE SOCIAL CLUB 

Since it was closed as a school in 1974 the building has become the 
location for the Aubane Social Club. The Club has put the building to excellent 
use for the benefit of the Community all around the area and the Committee 
have shown great initiative and done tremendous work over the years in 
developing all sorts of very worthwhile activities both educational and 
recreational. 

The recent celebrations of the 250th anniversary of the Butter Road were 
a good example of what they could do and what can be done with some well 
organised community spirit. Several thousand man-hours, and woman-hours, of 
work were spent on this event alone and apparently several stone weight were 
shed in the process. This shows that the spirit which built the school in the first 
place lives on and it has made the School building the social focus of the area. 
This is perfectly in keeping with its basic purpose. 
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Many people have certainly enjoyed coming to the building now in a way 
they never did when it was a school particularly those of the generation(s) when 
Tim Corcoran was Head. His memory haunted past pupils until the day they 
died. 

When one looks at these roll books it does, among other things, make one 
think of one's own mortality and at the risk of sounding morbid I would like to 
suggest that us past pupils might think of the future of the School building and 
the Social Club in our wills. 

The vast majority of the 600 or so of us who went through the school are 
still alive and if we all left, let's say £1,000, to the Social Club they could have 
up to half a million pounds to do things with in the years to come. On their 
record to date we could all feel perfectly certain that they would put it to the 
best possible use. All friends of the School would of course be very welcome to 
consider the suggestion also! 

Give it a thought!. 

THE REGISTER 

There were two roll books which were used throughout the life of the 
school. These began when there was separate boys and girls schools but for some 
reason were not amalgamated into one book when the two schools were in 1917. 
One result is that the chronological order is a bit confusing at times. There are 
also some double entries, which might have been caused by the confusion of 
having the two books. There is also a distinct possibility that this may have been 
deliberate to give the impression of having higher numbers than was actually the 
case. Also, there may be some mistakes in birthdays, though not many. This was 
probably caused by relying on what the children themselves said on the day they 
enrolled. 

It can be seen that there was a drastic change of style in 1948 when all 
entries were made in Irish which may have been the politically correct thing to 
do at the time but makes it a little more difficult to know who's who as nobody 
spoke the language and nobody was actually know by these names. 

The information is laid out in columns beginning with the date of entry; 
the number allocated on the register; the pupil's name; their date of birth; their 
religion; their townland; their father's occupation; the name of any other school 
they had attended. 

These pages therefore contain quite an amount of information and I hope 
it will be both useful and enjoyable to readers. 

Jack Lane 

August 1998 
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Primary education was provided by Aubane 
National School for 60 years. This publication gives 
an account of its construction and contains a record of 
all who attended it - about 600 people in total. 

The School building is now the location of the 
Aubane Social Club who are doing a magnificent job 
in maintaining the building and continuing its basic 
purpose - providing a service for the development of| 
the local community. 


